J. A. DANGERFIELD INTRODUCES . . .

THE FOUR STATIONS OF DUNEDIN

PART 1

OLD was the great incentive for improved transportation in many parts

of the world in the 19th century. The finding of big deposits in Otago
and Southland in the early 1860s brought many immigrants to those parts
of New Zealand, and upset the ways of many settled men, much to the
chagrin of the founders of Dunedin, an almost puritanical church settle-
ment. To improve local transportation, the Dunedin Town Council in 1863
censidered the question of allowing street cars, but it was not until 1879
that these began to run. In 1863 also, the Otago Provincial Council con-
templated the provision of rail transport, but it took no definite action.

On 16 MNovember 1864, however, Mr
T. Paterson was instructed Lo prepare 1o
survey a line of railway with a gauge of
3. 3in fram Dunedin to the Taieri. New
Zealane almost had serious problems with
track gauge. Canterbury had already laid
down a railway tw the wide gauge of
Afr. 3in., other districts were |:|l'=1-l:|ni1'|5,r ofF
building lines to the standard 4fr, 8lin.
gauge, and New Zealand's very first rail-
way, the line up the Dun Mountain at
Nelgon, had horse-drawn vehicles running
cn rails only 2fr, Gin, apart, As late as
15 June 1874, the Portobells correspondent
to the Dunedin newspapers was advocating
a light 2fe. Gin. gauge railway to connect
the city with the Peninsula; but in fact
all Otago railways were built w the 3f
fin. gauge that was stipulated in 1870 to
b the Mew Zealand standard.

The location for the first Dunedin sta-
tion provoked much diseussion. The first
cpuggested site was at the Rattray Street
Jetty, at abeut the eorner of the present
Wharf Street, with the line to run south-
wards over land still 1o be reclaimed,
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bisecting the last few yards of the Jery
Street wharf, Thence it would cross the
Turnpike Road (now Andersons Bay
RU:L:]] and skirt the Owval before tackling
the elimb arcund the hills of Caversham,

When it could be foreseen that the
reclamation was still some  vears away,
the railway planners contemplated buoild-
ing the Dunedin station on portion of the
Owal, approximately on the site of the
present Kensington School. It was here,
later, that the ceremony of Turning the
First Sod of the Southern Trunk Railway
was enacted by His Honour the Superin-
tendent of Otago {James Macandrew)
on Saturday, 18 March 1871, followed by
the customary speechmaking and baneuet,

But back in 1866 there was gazettod
yel another proposed site for the Dunedin
station; at or near the line of the southern
sicle of High Streer abowt seven chains
epstward from  the Customs House, A
Select Committee of the Provincial Coun-
cil appointed in 1867 suggested that the
station be on the south side of Jety
Street with a  separate stationn for  the
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Dunedin and Port Chalmers Ratlway Come-
pany on the reclaimed land north of Rat-
tray Street. During a Council debate on
3 June of that vear, however, it was
resolved that the station for the Southern
Trunk Railway be on the reclaimed land
near Rattray Street, on a section later to
become the site of the Telegraph Office,
now the Social Security Building, At the
Second Reading of the Otago Trunk Rail-
way Bill on 17 September 1867, it was
decided 1o locate the station on part of the
present Cueens Gardens (known for many
years as The Triangle}, about 100 yards
from the former selection. This sensible
action saved the Dunedin people  from
having two separate stations, as Welling-
tonians had for many vears. In Dunedin
it would have heen one for the north-
bound  trains and one for the south-
hound,

The estimated cost of the proposed 5fi.
Jim. gauge railway to the Taierl being
much  greater than was anticipated, the
Couneil called in William  Brunton,
M.LC.E.,, wha advocated several changes,
including a reduction of the gauge o .
flin. His estimate of the cost—£358,000
exclusive of land and oiher compensations
—led o much discussion and correspond-
ence among members of the Executive of
the Provincial Council. To reduce costs
still further, a gauge of 3fr. Gin. was pro-
posed. This led to still more discussion.

In submitting a report dated 5 October
1869 en the Dunedin and Port Chalmers
Railway, John Millar, FS.A, CE,
M.P.C. for Dunedin, mentioned the pos-
sihility of reducing the proposed 5ft, 3in.
gauge to 4. Blin, He allowed a sum of
£600 for a station and booking office at
Duncdin, making this comment: . . . this
station building to be a temporary cree-
tion, constructed of timber and corrugated
iron enly; in anticipation of the whale
having to be added to and remodelled as
a Central Station for the accommodation
of the Southern Tronk Line,”

Actual construction work on the line
o the Port began on Monday, 21 August
1870, by the contractor 1o the Dunedin and
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Port  Chalmers Railway Company, Mr
Packham, with his staff of about 23 men.
Their first task was w0 construct an em-
bankment along the then shoreline near the
intersection of 51 Andrew and  Castle
Streets, back towards the Stnart Street
jetty. Mo company or other officials were
present, but Mr Packham decided the
oceasicn warranted some ceremonial, so a
bottle of wine was broken over the hrst
barrowlead of spoil. The assembled work-
men gave three cheers, they were then
“treated”, and that completed the brief
ceremony of turning the first sod.

Not until nearly two months later, on
21 October 1870, did the promoters of
the line decide to change the gauge from
Afr. B to 3. Gim. Thizs was the frst
line to be constructed in accordance with
the provisions of the Railways Act 1870,
which stipulated the gauge to be used, with
some exceptions, for all future rails in
New Zealanel.

Tenders were invited lor labour only
for the erection of the railway station and
gocids shed on the Dunedin Railway Re-
serve. Plans and  specifications could  be
seen at the office of Messrs Prowdfoot,
Oliver and Ulph, Rattray Stréet, on and
after Monday, 29 July 1872, In the absence
of definite proof, it is assumed that these
plans and specifications were prepared by
I». L. Simpson in his capacity as engineer
e the Pert Chalmers Railway Company,
and that he supervised the erection of the
buildings.

The newspapers of the era did not com-
ment cn the construction  progress, nor
did they name the contractors, but on 24
October 1872 it was mentioned that the
import gocds shed, 200ft. = 40fw, then
in course of erection, would ultimately be
doubled in size. Tenders for this work had
been invited by W, N. Blair, Provincial
Engineer, on behall o the Colonial Gov-
ernment, some days earlier.

On that same dav, 24 October 1872,
raills were laid from the Stoarg Street
jetty o near the new station on the re-
gerve bounded by the harbour waterline
and High and Ranray Streas, Tr was ex-
pected the first train to reach the new sta-
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From an old prinl eourtesy J. A, Dongerficld.

It is believed that this photograph of Dur!tdill’s first railway station was taken in the
latter months of 1872, just before the railway was opened, Note that the tracks arc

not yei ballasted. High

ticn wonld arrive on the Thursday oven-
ing, but this estimate proved oo rosy be-
cause the trackwork was still not complete
by the 29th. Scon afterwards, however, the
rails were in use, and the station house and
irpcks were a scurce af moch wonderment
1o the children whe played about here and
hindered the prisoners in their work of
moving  spoil  for reclamation  purposes,
Complaint was made abour children plav-
ing about after one  fve-vear-cld  girl
almost lost a foot by getting caught in the
rails. She was rescued just as a wagon-
load of spoil was approaching. Parents
were sclemnly warned 1o keep their kid-
dics away from the locality,

Ar the end of November His Honour
the Superintendent was corresponding with
the Dunedin City Corporation abont access
1o the new station, suggesting that a new
street might he constructed from Moray
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treet is in the foreground.

Place e High Sweet. This aceess way
when built was known as Macandrew
Streetr; now it is Bur]iuglun Strect. Early
in December the prison labouy was diver-
ted to ilnpm\:ing Lower High Street 1o gi\-‘c
Letter  ctaticn  access from Castle and
Stuare Streets. An anguished writer 1o the
editer complained of the width of High
Street being reduced from 1) chains o
cne chain merely for the convenience of
draymen backing inte the station precincts.
The Chamber of Commerce was com-
menting that more land reclamation was
necessary as, when the line w the south
was linked up, the staticn and  goods
shed would be much too small for the
cxpected traflic.

ngers between Pore Chalmers and
Dunedin at first were carvied at the whim
and convenience of the promoters, who
did not lose many opportunities 1o pul-
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licise their venture, The first known
planned excursion was held on Boxing
Day 1872 when abowt 3,000 people
travelled on special trains to attend a
picnic in an unspecified paddock (pre-
sumably near Ravensbourne) made avail-
able by the promoters. Members of the
Oddfellows Lodge, organisers of the out-
ing, were honoured by the attendance of
His Excellency the Governor and Lady
Bowen. It was reported that the Dunedin
stationmaster, Mr Marsh, and his assistants,
worked zealously to make this outing a
success, About 350 people also travelled
to Port Chalmers to see construction pro-
gress cn the pier and other works.

For the Grand Opening of the Dunedin
and Port Chalmers Railway on Tuesday,
31 December 1872, a ceremeny was plan-
ned to start at 12 noon, with the official
train leaving for Port Chalmers at 12.30.
In the event, however, the official party
was about 30 minutes late, so the station
ceremony was abandoned.

The business and assets of the Port
Chalmers Railway Company were pur-
ahased by the Colonial Government on
9 April 1873 for £187,106. This privately
constructed and  operated railway then
came under the control of the Otago
Provincial Council. At the beginning of
May, in Dunedin, G. B. Williamson was
appointed Chief Clerk and Stationmaster
to replace Mr Marsh, the company’s rep-
resentative.

The success of the Port Chalmers Rail-
way is cmphasised by an August 1873
report which told of a large amount of
taffic on this line, and of the Jetty Swreet
wharf being so heaped with goods dis-
charged from coastal trading schooners
and other small vessels that in places there
was barely room for a horse and dray
to pass. Another extension of 200ft. to
the 300ft. import shed was being con-
structed in brick. Tt was planned w re-
place the wooden structure with brick,
but this was not done.

In December 1873 the £6,609 tender
of Proctor and Whittaker was accepted for
reclamation of the land intended for the
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site of the permanent Dunedin station.
This included the area bounded by Castle,
High, and Ratway Streets. (Castle Street
was later terminated at its intersection
with Lower Stuart Street.) The tender
price also included a triangular portion to
be filled to the level of the adjoining Rat-
tray and Crawford Streets, thus permitting
track connections between the proposed
No. 2 station and the Southern Trunk
Railway in  Crawford Street, It was
hoped that tenders would be called within
a few weeks for erection of the new sta-
tion.

The Second Station

During December 1874 and January
1875 an export goods shed, 300ft, x 60ft.,
was crected opposite the site of the new
station. Unlike the import shed, there was
no line ef rails through the building, but
there were tracks at ecach side under ver-
andahs, Plans were prepared for con-
struction of the second station in timber
on bhrick foundations, with a roof of gal-
vanised iron. The Dunedin City Corpora-
tion, sensitive to fire risks, demurred at
the construction of such a large timber
building, but when Mr Blair pointed out
that a similar building in brick or stone
would cost an additional £2,000, or com-
pel its removal to beyond the city limits,
and that the new station proposed would
be 300 feet from the nearest permanent
building outside the station, the Council
agreed to the use of timber. On the follow-
ing day, 25 June 1874, the tender of
Meikle and Campbell to erect the building
for £3368 10s. was accepted.

The second station was built on the
same railway reserve, Queen’s Gardens,
as the first one, but with the main en-
trance leading off Rattray Strect instead
of High Street. The new building was
parallel with and in a line with the
carriage shed, and almost opposite Vogel
Street,

A detailed description of this building,
opened for general use on Tuesday, 9
February 1875, is of interest because this
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Photograph eccurtesy Alexander Turnbull Lib:

This view of Dunedin’s second station, with an engine shed beyond, also shows

the original building, partly obscured

Dunedin’s No.
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edifice was shified late in 1884 to be-
come part of the third station that was
im use until Oceober 1906, A verandah was
provided to cover 206 [eet of the total
platborm length of 400 feet, The platform
was 18 feer wide, The public appreciated
the roomy offices and the covered plat-
form, as did the rvailway stall. There was
a covered carriage porch (such elegancel)
at the entrance to the booking office, sized
330 x 25Ft, but with tiny ticket-selling
windows., There were also a general waiting
room, At x 25fn; a ladies’ waiting room,
20ft. = 25ft.; a refreshment room 1806 =
25ft. where liguor could be purchased;
a bageape office, 170 = 150, with out-
sicle access for ecarts and dravs o be
backed in for easy handling of luggage
anel pareels; a store room 250t x 25ft.; and
a lamp room 20f1. x 256

Preparations were being made for the
ultimate linking up of the Fort Chalmers
line and the Southern Trunk Railway, the
Grand Opening of which was planned
for the spring of 1875, Mr William Con-
yers, General Manager of Otago Railways,
wrote to the City Council complaining
of the poor state of High Street outside
the station, A big block of blue stone from
Messrs McKenzies' quarry at Port Chalm-
ers was brought in to form the centre
bleck for an engine turntable, which had
not been required for the double-ended
locomotives Rose and Josephine.

Meanwhile, in June, another goods shed
was under construction, and again there
was comment on the use of timber, Surely,
it was said, there was stone in abundance
to erect a shed for the storage of in-
flammable goods

Comment was made in other guarters
concerning level crossings, particularly the
one at Rattray Street. Speaking in the
Otage Provincial Council, the Provineial
Secretary, Mr D. Reid, said it was the
Government’s intention to eliminate level
crossings  within  the boundaries of the
city, and to substitute under-crossings or
overbridges in their stead. To this day,
1968, Rattray Street remains a level cross-

ing, although all other nearlw strect cross-
ings on the main trunk line have been
climinated. In May 1882, Rattray Street
was extended to a width of D feet, and
on | Januwary 1931 the portion east of
Cumberland Street was renamed  Fryan
Atreet,

Lighting at the station and on the
nearby strects was also a canse of criticism,
as pickpockets were active amongst the
guenes. Passengers were warned of their
presence, Occaszionally goods and parcels
woere missed from their storage places,

Fortunately for the patrons, this new
staticn was already in use prior to the
grand opening of the Dunedin and Clutha
Railway on | September 1873, the day
having been declared a public holiday.
Those who gained seats on the official
train were considered to be extremely
fortunate. Subsequent speeial trains were
run for the benefit of residents of both
Dunedin and Balelutha whe wished 1o
sample this “novel and delightful® mode
of travel.

On the occasions of the arrival or 1m-
pending departure of owverseas vessels at
Port Chalmers, the Dunedin railway sta-
tion platform  presented a wvery lively
appearance. Complaints were made con-
cerning crowding, the inability to purchase
train tickets readily, and in the indignity
of having to travel second-class because of
a lack of seating after having purchased
a fArst-class ticket

Contracts were let in 1877 to Messrs
Meikle and Camphbell for the erection of
a passenger shed and platform at a cost of
£669 3s., and a connecting wooden over-
bridge for £664 18s. 6d. This “passenger
shed”, parallel with the main station, was
nearer Castle Street.

The 1878 annual report to Parliament
recorded that the Dunedin station as it
stond had been expected to meer the re-
quirements for many years to come, but
the traffic had increazed so rapidly that
even now it was scarcely large enough. The
report recommended that a new station on
another site should be started without

{continwed an page 81)



The Four Stations of Dunedin
(Continued from page 60)

delay, as it would take about two years
o complete.

Meanwhile reclamation of the shoreline
was continuing steadily, and the land now
{1968} occupied by the railway yards was
filling up and consolidating. Cumberland
Street was extended southward frem Rat-
tray Street, and buildings were going up
between there and Crawford Street. Dun-
edin was continuing to grow and the sta-
tion site and buildings were again becom-
ing inadequate—within less than a decade.

Tenders were invited on 14 May 1B79 for
removal of the carriage shed. This made
room for more platform extensions, which
were completed by mid-August, enabling
alterations to be made in the berthing of
trains. One report said that 99 trains, both
passenger and goods, were arrving and
departing from the station each weekday.

From this second Dunedin station, he-
tween 1876 and 1880, ran all the regular
passenger and the special race traing
worked by the Provincial Government (at
firsi}) and then the General Government
for the Dunedin, Peninsula and Ocean
Brach Railway Co. Lid. From January
1881, however, this company ran trains
on itz own line, constructed in Crawford
Street parallel with the main trunk rail-
way, uniil lack of patronage and the edict
of the Dunedin City Corporation that no
steam trains should run after the end of
the month caused a cessation of operations
in May 1882, After that date, trains only
ran occasionally, from Dunedin's third sta-
tion, to Forbury Racecourse, and not at
all to Andersons Bay.

(To be continued)
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J. A, DANGERFIELD REVIEWS . . .

THE FOUR STATIONS OF DUNEDIN

PART 2
(Continued from NZRO No. 116, page 81)

The Third Station

URING 1878 consideration was given

to the provision of vet another station
at Dunedin and where it was to be placed.
Greatly increasing rail traffic was making
costly temporary arrangements necessary.
These were, according to Mr. Blair in
June 1879, “confessedly, only a make-
shift™,

More land was being reclaimed on the
north side of Rattray Street, and it was
decided to locate the new station on the
seaward side of Cuomberland Street, The
tﬂking af land Ffor r".uilwa:.r purposes was
strongly opposed by the Otago Harbour
Board, which had heen  constituted  on
I June 1874, but the Government of the
day paid fair compensation of £23,000
for all land urtilised.

When the 1880 depression made its
presence felt, the station plans were con-
siderably curtailed, even to the extent of
just making repairs and extensions to the
existing  buildings meanwhile. But the
closing of portion of Castle Street, the
linking up of the two sections of Cumber-
land Strect, and the elimination of the
Jetty Street level crossing were problems
o hig to ignore indefinitely, The closure
of the Jetty Street level erossing and the
erection of the overbridge were lively
issues in those times. Deputations to mem-
bers of Parliament and Ministers were
frequent; all were concerned with access
to the shipping sheds and wharves and
the need for another station,

SUMMER, 1965-69

.[_:Illi]'[lﬂ.ll’.']].'1 on 10 March 188¢, a con-
tract for the construction of the founda-
tions for the “permanent” station was let
to Mr. W, Cadton for £1,256 145, These
foundations, completed by 23 May 1884,
were not wsed, and became the cause of

much comment during the vears that
followed.

On 25 August 1835 the Minister for
Public Works, Hon, Edward Richardson,
reported in his annual statement to Par-
liament: “The extension of the railway
station at Dunedin has been continued
during the year, and the new platforms
have been in use since 1 November last,
and it iz hoped that sufficient accom-
modation has now been provided for some
Years to come.

“The new passenger-house, which is de-
signed to be of masonry, has not as yer
been commenced, as it is considered that
it may be postponed for the present, in
view of the very large expenditure which
has already taken place”

This change of plans was also referred
to by the Engineer-in-Chief, John Blackett,
who wrote in his report for the year
ended 31 March 1885 “The most Lmpor-
tant construction work in progress on the
main line during the vear is the Dunedin
Station . . . The reclamation, platelaying,
and buildings were sufficiently far ad-
vanced to admit of the whole traffic being
turned into the new station on 1 Novem-
ber; and since then the greater portion
of the works necessary for present require-
ments have heen finished.
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From & print In the Otago Early Settlers'
Museum, Dunedin, courtesy J.A. Dangerfield

This artist’s impression of Dunedin as it might have been seen from a balloon in
1898 shows No.3 station near the centre, with the sites of the first two stations
slightly above to the left. Stuart Street crossing can be seen to the right of the
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station.

“The only large works not completed
are the passenger-station and the over-
bridge. It was decided to remove the old
station to the arrival-platform, and make
it serve for some time; consequently noth-
ing has been done to the new station
beyond completing the foundations, which
were under contract. The abutments and
piers of the over-bridge were finished in
December. Nothing has yet been done
towards the erection of the superstructure,
but the iron for it is now arriving.”

LEFT: Dunedin’s third station. This view
was probably taken shortly after the new
platforms were brought into use on 1
November 1884. At the far right, rolling
stock can be seen on the site of No. 2
station. Notice that the bay platform at left,
presumably for Port Chalmers trains, does

not appear in the 1898 sketch above,
Photegraph courtesy Alexander Turnbull Library

SUMMER, 1968-69

After the two parts of the second station
had been successfully moved to their new
locations, a more spectacular job was that
of shifting the wooden overbridge, which
had to be reversed during the moving
operation. There was much speculation
ameng the many watchers that the bridge
might topple over because of its height
and comparative narrowness, but the work
was completed without any hitch, to the
satisfaction of the workers and the dis-
appointment of the onlookers®

Newspaper reports show that the first
portion of the station in its new location

* This wooden overbridge was replaced in 1908
by a metal one with two spans, each of 50 feet,
fabricated by the Dunedin firm of Kincaid and
McQueen, It is still in use, but in a different
position — acdjacent to the Otago Early Settlers’
Association Museum, which itself is constructed
over portions of the unused foundations Iaid down
by Mr, Carlton in 1884,
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was brought into regular use, together
with the new main line adjacent to Cum-
berland Street, on Sunday, 26 October
1884, Some of the rails (the former main
line) at the east side of Crawford Street
were lifted, the engine shed was removed
to a site south of Jetty Street, the goods
shed was moved away, and on Sunday,
2 November, the second section of the
station was bodily moved to its new site.

The way was now clear for the linking
up of the north and south sections of
Cumberland Street, It was suggested that
the cleared station site should become a
market at which fish, vegetables, poultry,
ete.,, could be sold cheaply, but, fortun-
ately for the future traffic needs of the
city, this suggestion had been anticipated.
The Triangle, as the area was then known,
was gazetted as an Open Reserve on
16 May 1879, much to the chagrin of the
Otago Harbour Board, which had hoped
to gain control for rental purposes.

No. 3 station was added to from time
to time, as all stations seem to grow. In
March 1900, for example, for the depar-
ture of the Fourth Contingent to the Boer
War, the south end of the Cumberland
Street (or west) platform was extended
southwards three chains, some of the
ornamental trees in the garden plot be-
tween the overbridge and the Rattray
Street level crossing were cut down, and
the picket fence was taken back in a
westerly direction as far as the footpath
would allow. These changes permitted
much longer trains to be berthed for con-
veying both troops and well-wishers to
Port Chalmers.

The third station gave good service to
the residents and to visiters ta Dunedin
for more than 20 years, until 21 October
1906, when the present station, No. 4,
was opened for business, From that Sun-
day onwards, the two portions of the third
station were demolished to make way for
new trackwork and for construction of
the two-storey building originally used for
staff accommodation, but which now
houses part of the District Engineer’s
offices.

SUMMER, 1968-69

No. 4 Station

EFORE the site for the present station
was decided upon, there were many
discussions and many mectings, mostly of
protest, concerning the proposed location
of the building. In September 1897 the
Dunedin City Corporation decided to wait
upon the Government to advocate the
provisicn of a new station. The present
one, it was claimed, was “only an apology™
. “much more accemmodation was

needed” . . . "it was monstrous that a
foundation laid 14 years ago still had no
supersiructure built upon it” . . . “the

money spent on the new gaol should have
been used to provide a new station”, These
were some of the views expressed at the
time,

The Chamber of Commerce, the Otago
Harbour Board, and other organisations
were all voicing their suggestions about
land reclamation, possible closure of level
cressings, and access to the harbour edge,
All these differences of opinion culminated
in the appointment of a Royal Commis-
sion, which sat in August 1900. Tts report,
presented in the following October, fav-
oured the present site. This led to more
protests, but the Government acted on the
Commissicn’s recommendation.

The protesters variously wanted the
station to be placed near Jetty Strect
[were they influenced by the intentions of
the Otago Provincial Council?), or near
Hanover Street. Argument over the closure
of Lower Stuart Street access to the water-
front resulted in at least one extra street,
Ward Street, being formed and a pedes-
trian overbridge provided. A suggestion
that a subway be provided at what would
have been below sea level proved imprac-
ticable, Progress, however, could not be
forever delayed, and the Lower Stuart
Street crossing was closed from 13 June
1903 to enable construction of the new
station to begin.

As the building was to be erected on
reclaimed land, more than 600 ironbark
and bluegum piles were sunk into the soft
ground. On these piles was laid a plinth
made of stone from Port Chalmers and
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concrete mixed in the first electrically
operated concrete mixer seen in Dunedin.
In all, materials used included 2,176 tons
5 cwt. of bluestone quarried at Taieri
Lake, Central Otago, where a siding was
specially laid for the loading of this
material; 30,63¢ cubic feet of Oamaru
stone; 519 cubic feet of Port Chalmers
stone; 2,350 cubic yards of concrete; 2,648
superficial yards of rubble; and 6,390
cubic feet of plinth. One hundred and
ninety-nine tons of steel were used in
constructing the station platform veran-
dah.

Under the foundation stone, which was
ceremoniously laid on Friday, 3 June 1904
by the Minister for Railways, the Hon.
Joseph Ward, copies of the local news-
papers and a coin collection ranging from
a golden sovercign down to a humble
farthing were deposited. Unkind critics
have said that this Dunedin station was
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The new and imposing Dunedin

station building nearing com-

pletion in 1906, as secen from
the south end.

Photegraph: N.Z. Railways Publicity

provided as “election bait” by Ward and
his party,

Designed by Mr. G. A. Troup, of the
Chief Engincer’s office, the new building
was basically of two storeys. Its length was
417fe. 6in. and maximum width 57ft. 6in.
The main platform, 29 feet wide with a
gradient of 1 in 36 for water run-off, was
made 2,860 feet long, long enough to
accommodate two full-length trains. A
square tower at the south end of the
building rises to a height of 125 feet, and
houses a clock set some 60 feet above the
pavement. A smaller tower at the north
end is 80 feet high. Along the street front-
age, an arched colonnade is broken at the
main entrance by a covered carriageway
35 feet long and 20 feet wide. This was
designed for the horse and coach era, but
it is equally useful in these motorcar days.
The architectural style of the building has
been described as Flemish Renaissance.
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RIGHT: A stained-glass
window in the main
booking hall, on the
western side.

BELOW: A section of
the mosaic tiled floor in
the booking hall. This
was completely renewed
in 1965.

Photographs:

N.Z. Railways Publicity
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The mosaic tiled foor in the booking
hall scarcely needs mention; it is such a
distinctive and familiar feature of the
building.* Two handsome leadlight win-
dows, one facing east and the other west,
the design being in the form of the front
cf a locomotive, form another feature.

When constructed, this station was the
largest in the Colony and by far the
busiest, At the laying of the foundation
stone, znd again at the official opening
ceremony cn Monday, 9 November 1906,

LEFT: The street frontage of Dunedin
railway station in 1964,

BELOW: The “business” side of Dunedin
station, showing the colour-light signals that
recently replaced the former array of sema-
phores controlling the scissors crossover at
the centre of the 2,860 ft. platform.

Pbotographs: N.Z, Railways Publicity
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mention was made of the need to dupli-
cate the main lines in each direction out
of the city, and of the intention to elimi-
nate most of the city's level crossings.
Even while it was being built, how-
ever, controversy over various aspects of
the scheme continued, Argument raged
in 1905, for example, when the NZR
wished to build new locomotive sheds on
land to be reclaimed near Pelichet Bay.
As a result of representations from the
Otago Harbour Board, the new sheds were
buile by the former depot close by the
Andersons Bay Road. The resultant smoke
nuisance has since been the cause of much

(Continued on page 151)

* When the flcor I in need of renewal in the
carly 196G0s, the much  local itation to
ensure that this feature of the Dunedin station
building not climinated in the interests of
economy, As a result, the present floor is a replica
of the first,




steamer operating, and it had indicated
that deferment of mortgage repayments
could be one step. Government could not
give any firm commitment at this stage,
but, if it were economically possible, the
service would be kept going.

In  an  carlier announcement,  last
August, that tenders would shortly be in-
vited, the Minister had said the sale would
include the vessel Earnslaw, certain operat-
ing buildings at Queenstown, stock-yards
at Kingston, the slipway at Frankton, cer-
tain wharves, and the

land at Queenstown would be offered for
lease,

“It has  now  Deen decided,”  Mr.
Gordon said, “to offer the service on oon-
dition that the successful tenderer guar-
antees to maintain a serviee, particularly
for the run-holders on the south-western
side of the lake. Government recogmnises
the need for a service to those settlers
whe have no other form of transpart avail-
able, and will make provision in any sale
for their interest to be protected.”

He said, however, that conditions of

tender would not stipulate that Earmslaw |

must be kent in commission. The life of

the bailers on this 56-year-old steamship | pyy g approximately its present position.

was running out, and they would need

Department’s
interests in other wharves. Some railway |

replacing in about three vears’ time. The |

cost of this work, or replacement by diese] |

engines, could be expected to cost between
540,000 and $60,000.

Ta some extent, he said, the Earnslmy
had become a way of life on the lake, hut
it was nevertheless necessary to take a
close look at itz cost to the commuenity,

and to consider whether or net it might |

be better to maintain the essential services
in some other way. Whar possible other
ways might be acceptable would he a
matter for negotiation between the sucress-
ful tenderer and the Railways Department.

The vessel’s annual operating loss had
increased by an average of about $3,500 a
year since 1961, while the tonnage of
goods carried had seriously declined, The
number of passengers carried had drop-
ped by about a quarter since 1961, and
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the number of livestock carried had drop-
ped by about half in the same time. {These
changes followed the extension of a road
along the shore of the lake berween
Queenstown and Glenorchy. )

“There is no question of the vessel
carrying on with its existing hoilers heyond
1971, and this leaves a large question mark
over its future,” the Minister concluded.

The Four Stations of
Dunedin
{Continued from page 143)

romment—aften  caustic  comment—{rom
residents in the southern parts of the city.

The old engine sheds, which had heen
moved in 1884 from the site of the
Queen’s Gardens, or The Triangle as it
had been known, had o be demalished 1o
make way for duplication of the line to
Mosgiel and elevation of the double track
over two troublesome level crossings. This
elevated line also formed part of the grade
casement leading up to the new tunnel at
Caversham. The new sheds were brought
mnto use from Sunday, 23 Angust 1908,
on which date the main line alongside
Cumberland Street was also diverted 1o

The elevated track, single line at first, was
brought into use during 1910,

In February 1921, Juading businessmen
of Dunedin met the Prime Minister, My,
W. F. Massey, to suggest that the railways
of Dunedin be elevated, and that the land
50 made available be handed back to the
Otaga Harbour Board far leasing  pur-
poses. But the cost of such a scheme
proved to be prohibitive; and, it was
asked, why should Government funds he
used for such a purpese when the greatest
benefit would be derived by only one
Drganisation,

All in all, the history of Dunedin’s four
stations has been one of decizions, counter-
decisions, much newspaper comanent, in-
dignation meetings, and at least one Royal
Commission. Who said the citizens of Dun-
edin were placid and uncaring?
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